BEAUFORT COUNTY
DESIGN REVIEW BOARD (DRB) MINUTES
October 5, 2017, Grace Coastal Church, 15 Williams Drive, Okatie, SC

Members Present;  J. Michael Brock, Bill Allison, Peter Brower, Brad Hill, H. Pearce Scott and
Donald L. Starkey

Members Absent: James Atkins

Staff Present: Nancy Moss, Planner and Heather Spade, Planning Assistant

Guests: Birk Ayer, Ayer Design Group; Joe Albanese, Group 1 Auto; David Clear, Clear Architectural
and John Crouch, Oceana Design.

1.

2.

CALL TO ORDER: Vice-Chairman Brock called the meeting to order at 2:30 pm.

MINUTES: Vice-Chairman Brock asked if there were comments on the August 3, 2017 minutes. No
comments were made. Mr. Starkey motioned to approve the minutes as written. Mr. Hill seconded to
approve. Motion carried.

REVIEW OF 2018 MEETING SCHEDULE: The July 5" meeting may have to be changed
because of the July 4™ holiday.

PUBLIC COMMENT: There was no public comment.

NEW BUSINESS:

A. BMW of Hilton Head Building & Site Improvements — Bluffton — Conceptual

Ms. Moss gave the project background. Mr. Brock asked if there were any public comments
about this project and no comments were made. Birk Ayer , the project Civil Engineer, made the
presentation. He said that Group 1 has been working with BMW for a couple of years on
developing the improvements at this property and that this is one of the few sites along highway
278 which doesn’t have a front buffer. He said that in order to bring the front buffer into
conformance the parking spaces would have to be removed which was not feasible. Mr. Ayer said
that the building improvements would mainly include an open side service canopy. Mr. Ayer said
that the applicant originally desired to have an enclosed service canopy but that there were
architectural issues in conflict with the County code requirements with having a service door face
the road so an open service canopy was developed as a compromise. He referred to the site plan
and described the placement of the new service canopy and new tree islands to direct traffic flow
to better serve the customers. He then referred to the landscape plan and said that staff suggested
substituting overstory trees for the proposed palm trees and that additional shrubbery be added in
the front planting area which would not be problematic. Mr. Ayer said that the rear metal service
buildings would be painted, the canopy would be removed, the customer service and showroom
building EIFS facade would get refinished in white and the metal would be painted white also
which would greatly improve the curb appeal.

Mr. Scott said that more trees should be put along the front of the property and that he struggled
during the review of the project because it wasn’t “Lowcountry” but that the work proposed
would be an improvement.

Design Review Board Page 1 of 3 October 5, 2017



Mr. Allison agreed with Mr. Scott’s assessment and said that it looked like a car dealership and
was ok with the design.

Mr. Brower said that the proposed palm trees in the front buffer should be substituted with Live
Oak trees to increase the buffer and soften the building. He said that the more buffering that can
be done, the better. Mr. Brower asked whether the front tree island was an existing island and Mr.
Ayer said that it was.

Mr. Starkey suggested that two tree islands be created for trees and shrubs within the front parking
bays to soften the structure. He asked what the proposed building color would be. Mr. Ayer said
that it would be white per BMW’s color standard.

Mr. Hill agreed with all of the Board’s comments and with Mr. Starkey that trees should be added
not only within the front buffer, but also to add tree islands in the front parking area and add
plantings at the plant area adjacent to the new service canopy to bring down the scale of the
building. Because this is a public space, Mr. Hill suggested that Barberry shrubs, or another shrub
with thorns, be added to the plant bed adjacent to the proposed service canopy to discourage
pedestrians from crossing through it.

Mr. Brock said planting should be added on the island at the northwest corner of the building to
help soften the structure and agreed with Mr. Starkey’s comments about adding tree islands in the
front parking bays. He asked what the paint color was proposed to be on the back side of the
building. Mr. Ayer said that it would be white.

Mr. Brower said that if tree islands replaced two parking spaces along the front of the building it
would better meet the spirit of the County parking configuration requirements and add buffering
to the building.

Mr. Starkey asked if there was a side entrance door and why the handicapped parking spaces were
so far from the building. Mr. Ayer said that there was a side entry door and that there was little
room for a sidewalk across the front of the building because the front parking spaces. He added
that the building was elevated 5 steps off the ground level and explained that in order to meet the
sidewalk slope and width requirements, the spaces had to be placed at the proposed location to
meet the current building accessibility requirements.

Mr. Brower made a motion to approve the final submission as presented with the condition that
the landscaping and buffer improvements be included. Mr. Scott seconded the motion.

Motion carried.

6. OLD BUSINESS

A. Fire Station #40 Bay Expansion and Dormitory — Sheldon — Final
Ms. Moss gave the project background. Mr. Brock asked if there were any public comments
about this project and no comments were made. John Crouch made the presentation for this
project. Mr. Crouch said that plan revisions were made based on the DRB and staff comments,
wanted the DRB to address the side landscape buffer requirements and that a photometric plan
with fixture cut sheets had been prepared. He said that the design was changed at the front engine
bay and the dorm to unify the fire station and dormitory architecture. Mr. Crouch directed the

Design Review Board Page 2 of 3 October 5, 2017



7.

8.

Board’s attention to the elevation sheet. He said that the roofline of the addition was changed to
provide a single sloped shed roof to the rear and 20’ side returns and a straight facade was added
to present a more unified civic design. He handed out renderings from several perspectives and a
proposed material and color board for DRB review. He also handed out revised landscape plans
which included the retention ponds, and a photometric sheet with light fixture cut-sheets for the
Board’s review. Mr. Crouch said he would send the pdf versions of the hand-outs for the file.

Mr. Hill had no comments about this project.
Mr. Starkey had no comments about this project.

Mr. Brower said that he did not attend the conceptual presentation and that the red door color
against the white facade color was too jarring. Mr. Crouch said that the proposed siding color
isn’t as white as it appears and that the white color would match the existing white metal building
color.

Mr. Allison said that the final design was an improvement over the original submittal and that it
looked like a fire station.

Mr. Scott agreed with Mr. Brower’s comments about the red fire station doors and said that the
contrast was too great. He suggested toning the facade color down; perhaps a darker color to
compliment the design.

Mr. Brock said to add more layers to the east buffer between the street to the end of the dormitory
with the addition of Redbud understory trees and Wax Myrtle shrubs and other shrubs to enhance
the buffer.

Mr. Scott made a motion to approve the final submission with the conditions that the facade color
be toned down for staff review and that additional plants be added to the east buffer to enhance the
buffer. Mr. Allison seconded the motion.

Mr. Brock added a standard condition to the final approval. He said that “the structure,
landscaping, lighting, dumpster enclosure and other design features must be built/installed
according to the plans reviewed and approved by the DRB. The material and color board
reviewed and approved by the DRB must be adhered to during construction. Any changes to the
approved plans or submittals must be requested for and submitted to the DRB for formal
approval”.

Motion carried.

OTHER BUSINESS: Mr. Brock said the next scheduled meeting is on Thursday, November 2, 2017 at
2:30 pm at Grace Coastal Church.

ADJOURNMENT: Mr. Brower made a motion to close the meeting and Mr. Allison seconded the
motion. The meeting was adjourned at 3:10 p.m.

Design Review Board Page 3 of 3 October 5, 2017



